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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND CRIGINAL {if known} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The only surviving structure associated with the original Isle of
Wight Courthouse of 1800, Boykin's Tavern was built by Colonel Francis
Boykin in the late eighteenth century. Possibly begun as a story and a half,
center-hall, double-pile plan structure, the tavern underwent two major
periods of additions, The first additions, including the elevation of the
main block to two stories and a one-and-a-half story frame gambrel roof wing,
were built in the early nineteenth century. In 1900-1902 Boykin's Tavern
received numerous repairs and alterations including the present porch, a
second two-story frame wing and some interior remodeling.

Built on a slight rise adjacent to the present courthouse and the
Clerk's Office of 1822, the original core of Boykin's Tavern, consisting of
a frame one story structure with brick ends and shallow gable roof is a
mixture of eighteenth and nineteenth century architectural types. Although
some of the original window sash was replaced around 1900, early sash
surviving on the south wall shows a dimension in proportion from nine-over-
nine on the first floor to six-over-six in the attic. The brick ends and
chimneys follow eighteenth century precedent in the use of English bond
foundations with beveled watertable surmounted by Flemish bond walls and
exterior chimney bases with tiled shoulders to the second floor level. Abovg
the first weatherings the masonry shifts to three-course American bond with
rough shouldexs. In addition to the weatherings at the attic floor level,
the chimneys at Boykin's Tavern also have the unusual feature of weatherings
at the roof line conforming to the pitch of the gable. On the east facade
of the Tavern is a two-story porch which, while almost completely a product
of the 1900 alterations, may retain some of the architectural elements of a
similar but earlier porch. A full cellar laid in English bond and having an
original entry in the south wall has been partially backfilled to the east.

The woodwork and interior trim of Boykin's Tavern more closely
illustrates the building's transiticnal ‘character between Colonial and
Federal styles. While the center hall and south rooms were gutted and
refinished in the early twentieth century, the north first fleor rooms and
the second floor rooms preserve their original woodwork. Although slightly
altered, the northeast first floor room retains a partially paneled end wall
with beveled panels, a simple mantel molding and early chimney closet. The
northwest room is much richer; having a fully paneléd chimmey breast decorated
with a molded mantel with crossettes and beveled panels flanked by fluted
pilasters set on pedastels. Crowning the composition is delicately executed
cornice with Wall-of-Troy moulding. The remaining walls have a fully paneled
chest-high dado with a similar cornice and Wall-of-Troy moulding. Access
between the two north rooms of the original block and the passage between
the northwest room of the tavern and hall of the gambrel roof addition is
gained through two sets of multiple folding six and three-panel doors with
flat panels and butt hinges. The survival of this unusual interior feature
on a public house of this period is rare in Virginia. The second floor
interiors reflect the Federal style of the early nineteenth century through
the use of six panel doors and four original mantels characterized by
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period motifs as deeply moulded mantel shelves and gracefully fluted pilasters.

The frame geambrel roof wing is a simple hall-parlor plan strxucture
on a full basement. The brickwork for both the basement and exterior-end
chimney is laid in three-course American bond. Covered with beaded weather-
boarding the exterior presents a pilcturesque appearance with its three-bay
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE '
The original core of Boykin's Tavern was built on a four hundred

acre tract of land valued at 300 pounds soon after its purchase by Francis
Boykin from Robert Marshall in 1780. An influential figure in the history
of Isle of Wight County, Francis Boykin served in the Revolution as a
lieutenant with Patrick Henry in the 4th Company of the First Virginia
Regiment and as a major in the Continental Line. 1In 1792 Boykin was
appointed sheriff for Isle of Wight County and in 1797 served as a justice
on the County's courts.

In 1800, in co-operation with the County's decision to move the
County Court House from its mid-eighteenth century seat in the Town of Smith
field to a more central location, Francis Boykin deeded to the Commonwealth
of Virginia "... a certain tract of land in said County situate near the
dwelling or mansion house of said Boykin containing two acres... with all
houses and improvements." In exchange for this title and an agreement that
Francis Boykin would build the new courthouse buildings including stocks, a
jail and clerk's office, the County gave Boykin the deed to the Smithfield
courthouse property and buildings.

T

Upon his death in 1804, Francis Boykin's will provided that his
"courthouse plantation” be left to his son Francis Marshall Boykin. It was
probably during Francis Marshall Boykin's ownership that Boykin's Tavern was
raised to its present two-story elevation aad received the gambrel roof wing
to the rear. Although no specific reference is made to the building as a
tavern at this time, R. A. Brock im his hictorical sketch of Isle of Wight
County published in 1882 describes the building as "the old hotel”.

With Boykin's deed to the County in 1800 the problem of finding a
centrally located county seat which had inconvienced the citizens of Isle
of Wight County for almost one hundred fifty years was resolved.
Characterized by its fine period interior woodwork and prestigious location
Boykin's Tavern stands today as the only surviving structure associated
with the original Isle of Wight Court House of 1800,
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facade and fine later door hood., The wing's interior retains a Federal-period
mantel and double beaded chairboard as well as a fine closed string corner
stair with square balusters and simple newel. Like the main block of the
Tavern, the rear wing retains some original sash and early glazing.

The alterations of 1900-1902 have had a relatively minor effect .

on the architectural appearance of the original tavern and wing. Exterior
alterations included the addition of a two-story frame wing, the replacement
of some original sash and the extensive rebuilding of the present porch.
Additions to the early wing were confined to the introduction of a modern
doorway in the south wall and the modification of some interior space into
pantries and closets.

To the immediate northwest of the tavern are the deteriorated
remaing of an early dairy. Built on brick piers and covered with beaded sidin;
the dairy is particularly noteworthy for its raised six panel door with early
nineteenth century wood cased lock and Hi, hinges, its early shelves and fine
original sawnwork vents.
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